For	m 10-300 UNITED STATE	S DEPARTMENT OF		Ter	APAN M	Γ.t
	. 6-72) NA	TIONAL PARK SERV	ICE	M	ississippi	
	NATIONAL REG	GISTER OF HIS RY – NOMINATI		CES	inds	
	INVENTOR	T - NUMINATI	ION FURM	EN	FOR NPS US	EONLY
	(Type all entries	s – complete appl	licable sectio	· · · ·		
i. 7	TAME			<u>_</u>		<u>- MAY 2 - 5 - 1973 -</u>
	COMMON: The Oaks					
ł	AND/OR HISTORIC:	<u>~</u>	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
	Boyd House	Ĩ.				
<u>2. i</u>	OCATION					
	STREET AND NUMBER: 823 North Je	fforcon Str				
ł	CITY OR TOWN:		eel	CONGRESSION	AL DISTRICT:	
Í	Jackson			Thir	d	
Ī	STATE		CODE	COUNTY:		CODE
	Mississippi	39202	28	Hinds	<u>s</u>	049
3. (1			1	
	CATEGORY (Check One)		OWNERSHIP		STATUS	ACCESSIBLE
ļ	District 🕅 Building	D Public	Public Acquisit	ion:	X Occupied	Yes:
	Site Structure	X Private	📋 In Pro		Unoccupied	Restricted
	Object	🔲 Both	🗌 Being	Considered	Preservation work	No
1					ín progress	
ł	PRESENT USE (Check One or M					
		overnment dustrial] Park] Private Reside	ince 🗌	Transportation Other (Specify)	Comments
		ilitary] Religious			
	🗋 Entertainment 🛛 🕅 Ma	useum	Scientific			<u> </u>
4. (OWNER OF PROPERTY					
	Mississippi S	Society of	the Colo	nial Dame	es of Americ	- a 12
	STREET AND NUMBER:					v
	823 North Jef	ferson Str	eet			LS.
	city or town: Jackson			STATE:		CODE
	OCATION OF LEGAL DESC	PIRTION		MISS	sissippi 392	202 28 P
	COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF	DEEDS, ETC:				
	Chancery Cour	t Building				
	Post Office B	lox 686 31	6 South 1	Duccidant	C t	Hind
	CITY OR TOWN:			STATE	. Street	
	· 					
- 1	Jackson			Missis	sippi 3920	5 28
	REPRESENTATION IN EXIST	TING SURVEYS			6	
	TITLE OF SURVEY:	ican Build	inge Sur	7037		
	Historic Amer		ings our		County R	TIENEL
	Historic Amer		V Federal	State		100 NO
	Historic Amer DATE OF SURVEY: 1972 DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RE	2	X Federal	State		D 0 F 1079
	DATE OF SURVEY: 1972 DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RE Division of F	CORDS:	<u> </u>	Land)	AF	PR 2 5 1973
	DATE OF SURVEY: 1972 DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RE DIVISION OF F STREET AND NUMBER:	cords: Prints and	<u> </u>	Land)	AF	
	DATE OF SURVEY: 1972 DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RE DIVISION OF F STREET AND NUMBER: Library of Co	cords: Prints and	<u> </u>	Land)	AF	ATIONAL
	DATE OF SURVEY: 1972 DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RE DIVISION OF F STREET AND NUMBER:	cords: Prints and	<u> </u>	ohs state:	AF	ATIONAL REGISTER

CONTRACTOR OF								
7. DESCRIPTION				(Checl	(One)			
APR 200119730N	Excellent	🕅 Good	🗌 Fair	-	riorated	🗌 Ruins	Unexposed	
NATIONAL T	X Altered	(Check O	ne) ; Unaltered			(Che Moved	ck One)	

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Boyd House is a simple, one-story, frame and clapboard Greek Revival dwelling with a recessed gallery across the east facade, set almost flush with the ground. Two interior chimneys project symmetrically from the gable roof just behind the ridge, with stucco-covered shafts and bare, corbeled and stepped tops. The roof presents an otherwise unbroken expanse of wood shingles, sloping gently in a straight line to terminate at the front in a deep, flat architrave. The architrave extends the full forty-six-foot width of the facade and returns the nine-foot depth of the plaster-ceiled gallery The architrave is supported by six, square, wood recess. posts with molded bases and capitals. The posts mark the division of the facade into five bays. In the wider central bay is a single leaf door with two vertical panels. The door and its flanking side-lights, each composed of three rectangular panes over a tall wood panel, are set beneath a six-pane rectangular transom, the whole enframed by a battered and eared Greek Revival doorway architrave. The other bays of the facade contain six-over-six sash windows with shutters.

Two similar shuttered windows light each end wall. The thirty-four-foot end walls, set flush with the roof eaves, match each other except where a one-story rear wing with a gable roof and clapboard walls extends the north wall back an additional seventeen feet. Like the rear wall of the house, the wing is elevated four feet on brick piers to accommodate the sloping site. From the wing, an enclosed attached shed extends across the rear wall, stopping several feet short of the southwest corner.

In the jog formed at this corner is a small, cylindrical structure used as a dairy. Its five-foot-high brick wall is pierced irregularly by tall, narrow openings screened by castiron grillwork. Sockets on the inside of the wall once held supports for shelves. A cylindrical watertank with a roof originally topped the structure, its purpose being to cool the dairy by allowing water to drip down the brick walls and stand in a pool in the depressed brick floor. The dairy is presently topped only by a high, conical, metal roof.

Behind the rear wing, the domed top of a cistern projects above the ground, sheltered by a recently constructed, open pavilion with a low, pyramidal, wood shingle roof.

The interior of the house is composed of a ten-foot-wide central hall flanked on each side by two rooms with a common chimney. Closets, which may be original, occupy the recess between the chimney and the exterior wall in both north rooms. S

Form	10-300a
(July	1969)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

STATE		
Missi	issip	pi

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

MAY	2 5 19/3
ENTRY NUMBER	DATE
FOR NPS USE ONL	.Y
Hinds	
COUNTY	
MISSISSIPPI	

(Continuation Sheet)

(Number all entries)

7. Mantels and interior doorway enframements are in a plain Greek Revival style, decorated simply with side-projecting ears and a wide fillet. Plaster walls, wide floorboards, and a plain baseboard complete the interior furnish. The house has been furnished with Greek Revival articles, including a rocking chair, a churn, and a lamp base original to the house.

Only slight alterations have been made to the structure. The rear wing and the attached shed were added probably in the twentieth century. The cistern pavilion was constructed within the last twenty years, and the dairy roof has been put in place within the last year.



PERIOD (Check One or More as	Appropriate)		
Pre-Columbian	🔲 16th Century	18th Century	20th Century
15th Century	17th Century	XX 19th Century	
SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applicab	le and Known) Ca.	1856	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
BEAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Ch	eck One or More as Appropr	iate)	1
Abor iginal	Education ,	🕅 Political g 🗤 🚽	Urban Rlanning 0/
Prehistoric	Engineering	Religion/Phi-	Other (Specify)
Historic	Industry	losophy	
Agriculture	Invention	Science	App with
Architecture	Landscape	Sculpture	- 11 · 5 ·
Art	Architecture	Social/Human-	NE ASTIN.
Commerce	Literature	itarian	
Communications	📋 Military	Theater	
Conservation	Music	Transportation	

TATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANC

The Boyd House, a quaint Greek Revival cottage at 823 North Jefferson Street in Jackson, was built prior to the Civil War for James H. Boyd, a prominent early citizen of Mississippi's capital city. The actual construction date for the house is unknown. Though it was thought to have been built in 1846, chancery court records indicate that Boyd did not actually purchase the property until 1853. Prior to that date, George Fearn, who purchased the land from the State of Mississippi in April, 1847, was the sole owner of the tract, and he apparently constructed no dwelling on the lot; at least the value of the property did not increase appreciably during the six-year interim. Whatever the case, the house remained in the family of the original owner until 1960, when it was purchased by the Mississippi Society of Colonial Dames of America in November of that year.

Born and reared in Mason County, Kentucky, James H. Boyd migrated to Mississippi sometime before 1828 at the age of eighteen. He joined his brother in Woodville, in Wilkinson County, and there the pair operated a small newspaper, The <u>Woodville Republican</u>. After a short tenure in Woodville, the brothers then travelled to Bayou Sara, Louisiana, where for several years they operated a drug establishment. Though financially successful in Bayou Sara, Boyd returned to Mississippi ca. 1832. While James Boyd obtained no formal education, it has been reported that "his remarkable powers of observation and his naturally fine mind remedied this in a great degree and he became one of the most intelligent and well-posted men of his section."

After his return to the state, Boyd settled in Jackson and lived there the remainder of his life. It was in Mississippi's capital city that he distinguished himself as a businessman, civic leader and local politico. Records indicate that the first drugstore in Jackson was owned by Boyd; the first advertisement for the store appeared in March, 1835.

iing	LΟ	<u>irs</u> c mpany	of <u>Miss</u> , 1891	<u>issi</u> r , Vol	opi. Chio . I, pp.	cago: 412-
l, Ju ook 2	ne 2,	1, 1 p. 3	853, H 95.	inds	County C	hancery
						<u>· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · </u>
S Frty	0		INING THE C	ENTER	POINT OF A PRO	PERTY
E	ĸ					
Seconds "			Minutes Se 18,	econds 32 •	Degrees Minute 90 o 10	s; Seconds • 34 •
n 8	1	•	•	ana a Maria		
8					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
					TER	v
			ATE OR COU	NTY BO		
CODE	-1°	CONT	K	y in	NECEN	\ п
CODE	- c	OUNTY:	(3)	4	PR 25 10	CODE
CODE	- c	OUNTY:	(ce)	REG	TONAL A	
CODE	- c	OUNTY:			No the second se	CODE -
11. FORM PREPARED BY					<u>a presente</u>	
n Arch:	ive	=s_am	u niste) 1 y		
		5 Z 5			مەرى 10 قاقات ، يارىر. مەرى	2
	1.		. .			CODE
	<u>M</u> :					<u>- 2.8</u>
Na-			Ser essi e	sted or	a ku talili in tetre sirre	(1) State of
c Laŵ		I hereby			operty is includ	ed in the
lusion		Nətiona	1 Register.			
been		(PI N	4	7	
	1	\underline{U}	When!	m	attly:	An and a first state of the second state of th
mendeu		Director,	Office of Ar	cheology	and Historic Pres	servation
X		13 e	î	तत्र १ हे र	rasa ()i se	· 13
		Date	57251	7.3	·	
		ATTES	Γ: · · · / ·	; ; ; · · · ·	A constraint pr	No.
of			Keeper	of The N	m.t. ational Registe	
		Date	6	2	373	GP0 931-894
	Seconds TY: Solver Code Co	Seconds TY: On CODE C CODE C C CODE C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	s s FRTY COK 22, p. 3 s FRTY COK 22, p. 3 DEF R DEF R DEF R DEF R DEF R DEF COL COUNTY: CODE COUNTY: CODE C	STATE Na- c Law Na- c Law C Law Na- c Law Na- c Law Na- c Law Na- c Law Na- c Law Na- c Law Na- c Law Na- c Law C La	state Na- c Law Na- c Law Law Law Law Law Law Law Law	LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDIN OK 22, p. 395. LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDIN DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PAC OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES E. LATITUDE LATITUDE LATITUDE LATITUDE LATITUDE LATITUDE LONGIT Degrees Minutes Seconds 32 o 18, 32 · 10 TY: ONE ACRE CODE COUNTY CODE COUNTY COUNTY CODE COUNTY CODE COUNTY C

•

Form 10-300a (July 1969)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

STATE			
Mis	si	ssi	ppi

co ŀ

INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

(Continuation Sheet)

MAY	2 5 1973
ENTRY NUMBER	DATE
FOR NPS USE ONL	.Y
Hinds	
UNTY	
MISSISSIPPI	

(Number all entries) 8.

Throughout the 1840s, Boyd was actively engaged as an auctioneer and merchandiser. With four-thousand dollars in taxable sales. 1847 was auctioneer Boyd's peak year. In 1850, the Mississippi legislature chartered the Pearl River Steam Navigation Company for twenty-five years. Boyd, one of the thirty-eight incorporators of the company, built and operated two boats on the Pearl River for some time.

James H. Boyd held many positions in local government--both elective and appointive. In January, 1842, the people of Jackson elected Boyd mayor. His first administration was notable for the construction of a much-needed city prison, the purchasing of a new and modern fire engine for Jackson, and a crackdown on unlicensed retail liquor dealers in the city. At the end of Mayor Boyd's first term, Jackson was quite uncommonly operating in the black, with \$747.00 in the treasury, and the citizens expressed their appreciation at the polls by reelecting Boyd in January, The mayor's second administration was also significant. 1843. During 1843, a fast-growing Jackson was having problems in law enforcement. An ordinance was adopted, therefore, whereby a "city watch" was appointed to help the constable keep order in the city. Further, a hook and ladder fire wagon was constructed, the city graveyard was fenced, and the price of retail liquor licenses was Again the city was operating in the black at the end of raised. Mayor Boyd's second term, with \$841.00 in the city treasury. Thus Boyd offered for a third successive term in January, 1844, but, despite his accomplishments, he was defeated by John P. Oldham. Ex-mayor Boyd also served twice on the board of aldermen for the city of Jackson during the 1840s--in 1844 and 1847. As an alderman in 1844, he served on the committee which established a free school for orphans and children whose parents were financially unable to educate them.

James H. Boyd continued in local politics in the decade preceding the Civil War. Though available records are sketchy, he again served as mayor of Jackson in 1850 and 1858. At the close of both administrations, Boyd was defeated for reelection. In 1850, the Mississippi legislature passed an act for the completion of the State Lunatic Asylum, and Boyd was appointed by John A. Quitman to the board of commissioners which supervised the construction of the institution. He was also appointed by Quitman as "a Commissioner to administer oaths, and take deposi tions and affidavits to be used in this state."

Form 10-300a (July 1969) UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

	_
TATE	
Mississippi	
COUNTY	
Hinds	

ENTRY NUMBER

FOR NPS USE ONLY

VAK.

DATE

5 1973

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

(Continuation Sheet)

(Number all entries)

8.

The records further indicate that James Boyd served on the board of aldermen during the years of civil war--1862, 1863, and 1865--as well as during 1866 when the people of Jackson were allowed to choose their own public officials for the last time until 1872. A letter dated December 21, 1866, also noted that Boyd was serving as a justice of the peace in the years immediately following the Civil War.

Boyd was also active in the civic and religious life of Jackson. When the first militia company, the Capitol Guards, was organized in August, 1836, James H. Boyd was elected by his colleagues as first lieutenant. Boyd is also listed as a charter member of the Silas Brown (Masonic) Lodge, chartered by the Grand Lodge in 1845 and incorporated by the Mississippi legislature in 1846. Further, Boyd was an active Presbyterian, serving on the building committee for Jackson's first Presbyterian church and as an elder for thirty years.

In 1843, Boyd married Eliza Ellis, the daughter of James E. and Sarah Morehead Ellis. The family of Mrs. Boyd's mother (Morehead) is significant in that it produced three governors-two of Kentucky and one of North Carolina. The Boyds became the parents of three sons and three daughters. After James Boyd's death in 1877, his widow remained in the Jefferson Street home the remainder of her life. In 1879, one of Boyd's daughters, Mary, married another prominent Jacksonian, Richard F. McGill. The couple made their home with the widowed Mrs. Boyd. Elected as steward to the board of trustees of the State Lunatic Asylum in 1859, McGill served continuously in that capacity until his death. The McGill family continued as owners and occupants of the Boyd House until 1960.

In November, 1960, the antebellum structure was purchased and restored by the National Society of the Colonial Dames of America in Mississippi. It presently serves both as the Society's state headquarters and as a museum house, open daily to the public for a small admission fee.



Form 10-300a (July 1969) UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

(Continuation Sheet)

state Mississippi

county Hinds

INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

inds			
FOR NPS USE ONL	.Y		
ENTRY NUMBER	1	C	ATE
MAY	2	5	1973

(Number all entries)

9.

- McCain, William D. <u>The Story of Jackson, A History of the Capital</u> <u>of Mississippi, 1821-1951</u>. Jackson, Mississippi: J. F. <u>Hyer Publishing Company, 1953, Vol. I, pp. 49, 58, 78, 88,</u> 142, 145, 154, 176-179, 188-190, 194, 234.
- Mary F. McGill to Mississippi Society of Colonial Dames of America, November 7, 1960, Hinds County Chancery Court Records, Deedbook 1252, p. 245.
- State of Mississippi to George Fearn, April 12, 1847, Hinds County Chancery Court Records, Deedbook 18, p. 579.
- Mississippi Department of Archives and History. Governors' Series E. Administration of Governors Quitman, Guion, and Foote: Applications for the Office of Commissioner of Deeds for Mississippi in Other States, 1850-1853, Vol. 41.
- Mississippi Department of Archives and History. Governors' Series E. Administration of Governor B. G. Humphreys: Correspondence, September-December, 1866, Vol. 80.
- Personal Inspection by Robert J. Bailey, Historian, and Ronald W. Miller, Architectural Historian, Mississippi Department of Archives and History, February 5, 1973.

